
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, June 17, 2013

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Introduction of Beloit Public Library Director Nate Deprey (Laatz)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a ground-floor office use in
the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for First National Bank, located at 405 and
413 E. Grand Avenue and 413 and 417 State Street (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0

b. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a wireless communications
tower in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay
District, for the property located at 2600 Cranston Road (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0

c. Proposed Ordinance amending the Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit to change
the zoning district classification of the property located at 2293 Prairie Avenue from C-1,
Office District, to C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0
First Reading, suspend the rules for Second Reading

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the
General Order of Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 3, 2013 (LeMire)

b. Parks, Open Space & Recreation Plan 2012-2016 (Ramsey)
Refer to the Plan Commission (See www.ci.beloit.wi.us to review the Plan in its entirety)

c. Resolution approving the renewal of a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License
for the Fraternal Order of Eagles #557, d/b/a/ Beloit Eagles Club, located at 302 State
Street, Ronald Minnick, new Agent (LeMire) ABLCC recommendation for approval 4-0

http://www.ci.beloit.wi.us/


d. Resolution approving a Change of Agent for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut,
located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, from Ryan Bennett to Juan Mendoza Ochoa (LeMire)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 4-0

e. Resolution approving a Change of Agent for Domenico’s Pizza & Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a
Domenico’s, located at 547 East Grand Avenue, from Cindy Ross to Nathan D. Lipps
(LeMire) ABLCC recommendation for approval 4-0

f. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to Apply for the National Clean Diesel Grant
through the Leonardo Academy that Provides for the Reduction of Diesel Emission and
Fuel Consumption (Boysen)

g. Resolution authorizing the City of Beloit to apply for and enter into a Grant Agreement
for the Edward Byrne Memorial Local Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program FY 2013
and partner with Rock County through a Regional Memorandum of Understanding
(Tyler)

7. ORDINANCES – none

8. APPOINTMENTS

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution approving the City’s Offer to Purchase 150 Depot Street and authorizing the
execution of the same (Casper) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0

b. Resolution adopting the Memorandum of Understanding regarding Seller’s Brokerage
Commission (Janke)

c. Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the School District of
Beloit for provision of Adult School Crossing Guards (Tyler)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the
City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: June 12, 2013
Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City of Beloit City Clerk
http://www.ci.beloit.wi.us

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG channel 98 or digital channel
992. Meetings are rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on

Tuesday at 1:00 p.m., Thursday at 8:30 a.m. and Friday at 1:00 p.m.

http://www.ci.beloit.wi.us/


RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO

ALLOW A GROUND-FLOOR OFFICE USE IN THE CBD-1,
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT – CORE, FOR THE PROPERTIES

LOCATED AT 405 & 413 E. GRAND AVENUE AND 413 & 417 STATE STREET

WHEREAS, the application of First National Bank & Trust Company and Centre 1 Bancorp,
Inc. for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a ground-floor office use in the CBD-1, Central Business
District – Core, for the properties located at 405 & 413 E. Grand Avenue and 413 & 417 State Street,
having been considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held
for that purpose and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the
Proof of Publication on file in the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow a ground-floor office
use in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the properties located at 405 & 413 E. Grand
Avenue and 413 & 417 State Street in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises:

Lot 1 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume __, Pages ______ in the
Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, located in the City of Beloit, Rock County,
Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 14,560 square feet, more or less.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby stipulate
the following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed
necessary for the public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the continued use of the building located 413-417
State Street as ground-floor office space, the conversion of the building located at 413 E.
Grand Avenue into ground-floor office space, and a 1,961 square-foot, one-story building
addition consisting of ground-floor office space that will connect the existing buildings.

2. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall obtain an
Architectural Review Certificate and a Certificate of Zoning Compliance, which involves
Planning staff review & approval of architectural & site plans.

3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the
Plan Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director
of Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 17th day of June 2013.
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President
ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the properties located at 405 & 413 E. Grand Avenue and 413 & 417 State
Street

Date: June 17, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
First National Bank & Trust Company and Centre 1 Bancorp, Inc. have filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow
a ground-floor office use in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the properties located at 405 & 413 E. Grand
Avenue and 413 & 417 State Street.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 This project involves a minor building addition over a portion of the plaza property (405 E. Grand Avenue) that will

connect the existing office building located at 413-417 State Street to the building located at 413 E. Grand Avenue. A
Location & Zoning Map that highlights the affected properties is attached to this report.

 The proposed single-story addition is 1,961 square feet in area. The proposed addition will eliminate a small section of
the plaza and will eliminate ingress & egress between the plaza and the private alley to the northeast. As shown on the
attached plans, the proposed addition will be used as office space, a storage area, and a break room. The existing
building located at 413 E. Grand Avenue will be converted into office space and a conference room.

 In accordance with Section 6.2.10 of the Zoning Ordinance, office uses in the Central Business District are permitted
by-right above the ground floor but require a Conditional Use Permit on the ground floor. Uses in the Central Business
District are exempt from the off-street parking requirements in the Zoning Ordinance.

 If the requested Conditional Use Permit is approved, the applicant will be submitting detailed site & architectural plans
for Planning staff review and approval.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on June 5, 2013 and voted unanimously (5-0) to recommend approval of the
Conditional Use Permit, subject to the three conditions recommended by Planning staff.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – This proposal will increase the amount of office space in the middle of a
walkable, mixed-use business district while utilizing existing infrastructure.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: June 5, 2013 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CU-2013-08

Applicant: First National Bank & Trust
Company and Centre 1 Bancorp, Inc.

Owner: First National Bank & Trust
Company and Centre 1 Bancorp, Inc.

Location: 405 & 413 E. Grand Avenue
and 413 & 417 State Street

Existing Zoning: CBD-1, Central
Business District – Core

Existing Land Use: Office & Park Parcel Size: 14,560 square feet

Request Overview/Background Information:
First National Bank & Trust Company and Centre 1 Bancorp, Inc. have filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow
a ground-floor office use in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the properties located at 405 & 413 E. Grand
Avenue and 413 & 417 State Street.

Key Issues:
 This project involves a minor building addition over a portion of the plaza property (405 E. Grand Avenue) that will

connect the existing office building located at 413-417 State Street to the newly acquired building located at 413 E.
Grand Avenue. A Location & Zoning Map that highlights the affected properties is attached to this report.

 The proposed single-story addition is 1,961 square feet in area. The proposed addition will eliminate a small section of
the plaza and will eliminate ingress & egress between the plaza and the private alley to the northeast.

 As shown on the attached floor plan, the proposed addition will be used as office space, a storage area, and a break
room. The existing building located at 413 E. Grand Avenue will be converted into office space and a conference room.

 This request is directly related to a separate request for approval of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to consolidate these
four parcels into two lots in advance of the proposed building addition.

 In accordance with Section 6.2.10 of the Zoning Ordinance, office uses in the Central Business District are permitted
by-right above the ground floor but require a Conditional Use Permit on the ground floor.

 Uses in the Central Business District are exempt from the off-street parking requirements in the Zoning Ordinance.
 If the requested Conditional Use Permit is approved, the applicant will be submitting detailed site & architectural plans

for Planning staff review and approval.
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have not submitted any comments or concerns.
 The attached Public Notice was sent to ten nearby property owners. As of this writing, staff has not received any

comments or concerns.
 Findings of Fact

Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on
the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 The applicant owns all of the adjacent properties, and the proposed office use will not be
detrimental to the public. Although ingress & egress to the alley will be eliminated, the applicant
will retain the vast majority of the plaza, which is an important community gathering space.

 Although the building located at 413 E. Grand Avenue will be converted from retail space to office
space, accommodating the needs of a growing financial services employer is equally important in
maintaining a vibrant downtown business district.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The proposed office use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of nearby properties.
c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood

of the subject property;
 On the contrary, the proposed improvement of this downtown property is likely to enhance

property values within the area.
d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and

improvement of the surrounding property;
 The proposed office addition is a minor infill project in the heart of a fully developed downtown

district.



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or
otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will
cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed site layout is compatible with existing development in the area and the exterior
architectural design will be reviewed by Planning staff during Architectural Review.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve
the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 Adequate utilities and other infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use.
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

 The proposed addition is not expected to result in a significant increase in traffic.
h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Planned Mixed Use: Office/Residential above Retail uses for the subject
properties. The underlying CBD zoning classification is consistent with this recommendation, and the City retains the right to
evaluate ground-floor office uses as a conditional use. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – This proposal will increase the amount of office space in the middle of a

walkable, mixed-use business district while utilizing existing infrastructure.
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a ground-floor office use
in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the properties located at 405 & 413 E. Grand Avenue and 413 & 417 State
Street, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the continued use of the building located 413-417 State Street as ground-floor
office space, the conversion of the building located at 413 E. Grand Avenue into ground-floor office space, and a 1,961
square-foot, one-story building addition consisting of ground-floor office space that will connect the existing buildings.

2. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate and
a Certificate of Zoning Compliance, which involves Planning staff review & approval of architectural & site plans.

3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission and
City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve
minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Floor Plan, CSM, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report

Area of Proposed Addition

413 E. Grand Avenue

413 E. Grand Avenue

413 State Street



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report



4.a. CU-2013-08, FNB Office, E. Grand Avenue & State Street, Council Report



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO

ALLOW A WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS TOWER IN A C-2, NEIGHBORHOOD
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT AND MRO, MILWAUKEE ROAD OVERLAY DISTRICT, FOR

THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2600 CRANSTON ROAD

WHEREAS, the application of Jacob Bradt, on behalf of First National Bank & Trust Company, for a
Conditional Use Permit to allow a wireless communications tower in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial
District and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District, for the property located at 2600 Cranston Road, having
been considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose
and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the Proof of Publication on file
in the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow a wireless communications tower in a
C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District, for the property located
at 2600 Cranston Road in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises:

Lot 1 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 20, Pages 315-319 in the Certified
Survey Maps of Rock County, located in the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin. Said
parcel contains 1.5657 acres, more or less.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby stipulate the
following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed necessary for the
public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit shall allow the construction of one (1) wireless communications tower
that may be up to fifty (50) feet in height to be located on the west façade of the bank building on the
subject property as illustrated in the submitted architectural elevation.

2. The tower shall be painted in a neutral color to reduce visual obtrusiveness.
3. The applicant must obtain a Certificate of Zoning Compliance and an Architectural Review Certificate

before building permits will be issued for this project.
4. Following construction, the operator or property owner shall obtain and retain a Wireless

Communication Facilities annual license.
5. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan

Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building
Services Director may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and
uses that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal
Code.

Adopted this 17th day of June, 2013.
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President
ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 2600 Cranston Road

Date: June 17, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Jacob Bradt, on behalf of First National Bank & Trust Company, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow
one 50-foot wireless communication tower in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay
District, for property located at 2600 Cranston Road.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant intends to erect the tower on the west side of the building for the purpose of communicating with the

main bank branch on East Grand Avenue and a bank branch on Madison Road.
 The proposed tower will be located on the west side of the bank building and bracketed to the façade. The tower will

include two antenna dishes that are two-feet in diameter each. This project will not include an equipment shed.
 The tower will be located in an area where the building’s mechanical equipment is adequately screened by landscaping

and a knee wall.
 In order to be effective, wireless communication towers must exceed the height of structures, trees, and other

obstructions in the surrounding area. In this case, staff feels the proposed 50-foot tower is in scale with the existing
neighborhood. The maximum building height in the C-2 district is 45 feet, but towers are exempt.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on June 5, 2013 and voted unanimously (5-0) to recommend approval of the
Conditional Use Permit, subject to the five conditions recommended by Planning staff.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: June 5, 2013 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CU-2013-09

Applicant: Jacob Bradt, on behalf of
First National Bank & Trust Company

Owner: Centre One Bankcorp Location: 2600 Cranston Road

Existing Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District & MRO,
Milwaukee Road Overlay District

Existing Land Use: Bank Parcel Size: 1.56 acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Jacob Bradt, on behalf of First National Bank & Trust Company, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to
allow one 50-foot wireless communication tower in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road
Overlay District, for property located at 2600 Cranston Road. The applicant intends to erect the tower on the west side of the
building for the purpose of communicating with the main bank branch on East Grand Avenue and a bank branch on
Madison Road.

The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The adjacent zoning
and land uses are as follows:

North: C-3, Community Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District; Walmart
South: PUD, Planned Unit Development and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District; Morgan Square
East: PUD, Planned Unit Development and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District; Culvers
West: R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential District; Condominiums

According to the Zoning Ordinance, a wireless communications tower requires a Conditional Use Permit in a C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District. When a Conditional Use Permit application is filed, the Zoning Ordinance instructs the
Plan Commission to evaluate the proposed use’s impact on the neighborhood. The Plan Commission’s findings are
forwarded to the City Council and the City Council may approve, approve with conditions, or deny a Conditional Use Permit
application.

Key Issues:
 First National Bank seeks to improve its operations and internal communications by erecting a 50-foot wireless

communications tower on the subject property. The proposed tower will allow for efficient and faster communication
between its three banks located in Beloit.

 The proposed tower will be located on the west side of the bank building and bracketed to the façade. The tower
will include two antenna dishes that are two-feet in diameter each. The tower will not include an equipment shed.

 The tower will be located in an area where the building’s mechanical equipment is adequately screened by
landscaping and a knee wall.

 In order to be effective, wireless communication towers must exceed the height of structures, trees, and other
obstructions in the surrounding area. In this case, staff feels the proposed 50-foot tower is in scale with the
existing neighborhood.

 The maximum height in C-2 is 45 feet, but towers are exempt.
 Included in this report is an architectural elevation, tower brochure, and photographs that show how the tower might

appear.
 In accordance with the Zoning Ordinance, a site plan has been submitted and is attached to this report. The red

circle indicates the proposed location of the tower, which is setback 75 feet from the right-of-way to the north and
setback 90 feet from the western lot line.

 The proposed tower is not expected to generate significant traffic and will not necessitate additional off-street
parking stalls. The existing use will retain sufficient parking stalls.

 Public facilities and infrastructure exist in this area and the property receives the full range of municipal services.
 Neighboring property owners and the public were notified of the proposed tower. Planning staff did not receive any

comments.
 If the Conditional Use Permit is granted, the applicant will need to comply with the Site Plan Review and



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

Architectural Review procedures before building permits will be issued for this project.
 City review agents have reviewed this Conditional Use Permit application and do not have any comments or

concerns regarding the proposed use.
 Findings of Fact

Based on Section 2.5.4 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Staff believes that the proposed fifty-foot tower will not be detrimental to or endanger the
public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare. The proposed tower is compatible
with the surrounding neighborhood.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 One fifty-foot wireless communications tower will allow the continued use and enjoyment of
nearby residential and commercial properties. The tower will be anchored to the building and
does not pose a threat to nearby properties should a natural disaster or man-made disaster
causes it to fall.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood of the subject property;

 The conditional use will not substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood of the subject property. Moreover, the proposed tower is five feet over the forty-
five feet height requirement in the C-2 District, which is not substantial to diminish or impair
property values with the neighborhood.

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property;

 The establishment of the tower on the subject property will not obstruct any parking or
pedestrian walking areas on the site or nearby properties, therefore, it will not impede upon
the normal and orderly development and improvement of the subject property or surrounding
properties should it occur.

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar
or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it
will cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed conditional use is compatible with existing development in the neighborhood
and is not likely to cause depreciation in property values. However, the appearance of the
tower may disrupt the visual interest of nearby neighbors. Therefore, staff is recommending
that the tower be painted in a neutral color to camouflage and reduce the visual obtrusiveness
the tower may cause.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to
serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 The property is currently served by adequate utilities, roads, and facilities.

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
 Following construction, the proposed tower will not generate traffic congestion.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of this chapter (the Zoning
Ordinance).

 If the Conditional Use Permit is granted, staff will review the submitted site plan to ensure
compliance with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan designates this property for Community Commercial land uses. The Comprehensive Plan
recommends a C-3, Community Commercial District classification for this property. Other commercial classifications
may be appropriate, and the C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, is appropriate for this parcel. Towers are
conditional uses in C-2 and C-3 Districts.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow one wireless
communications tower in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District, for the
property located at 2600 Cranston Road, subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit shall allow the construction of one (1) wireless communications tower that may be up
to fifty (50) feet in height to be located on the west façade of the bank building on the subject property as illustrated
in the submitted architectural elevation.

2. The tower shall be painted in a neutral color to reduce visual obtrusiveness.
3. The applicant must obtain a Certificate of Zoning Compliance and an Architectural Review Certificate before

building permits will be issued for this project.
4. Following construction, the operator or property owner shall obtain and retain a Wireless Communication Facilities

annual license.
5. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission and

City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building Services Director may approve
minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses that comply with and meet all of the
standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Site Plan, Architectural Elevation, Photographs, Tower Brochure, Application
Public Notice, and Mailing List.



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

Site Plan



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

Architectural Elevation



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

First National Bank Building
(Looking South)

Proposed Tower Location
(North Side View)

Proposed Tower Location
(West Side View)



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

Examples of
Proposed Tower



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report

Tower Brochure



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report



4.b. CU-2013-09, 2600 Cranston Road, Wireless Communication Tower, Council Report



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report

ORDINANCE NO. ____________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code,
Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows:

The following described land, also known as 2293 Prairie Avenue, is hereby changed from C-1,
Office District to C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District:

Lots 1 & 2 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 10, Page 483 in the
Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, located in the City of Beloit, Rock County,
Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 0.7765 acre, more or less.

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and publication.

Adopted this 17th day of June, 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, Council President
Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

Published this ____ day of _________, 2013

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2013
01-611100-5231-



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Zoning Map Amendment Application for the property located at 2293 Prairie Avenue

Date: June 17, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Pastor Clifton White of Good News Christian Center has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from C-1, Office District to C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 2293
Prairie Avenue.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant intends to convert an existing message board sign into an Electronically Variable Message (EVM) Sign.

EVM signs are prohibited in the C-1 district, but permitted by-right in the C-2 district.
 If the requested rezoning is approved, the applicant intends to obtain a Sign Permit to allow this sign conversion.
 The subject property is currently used as a church. Churches are a conditional use in the C-2 district. The existing

church use will be allowed to continue if the requested rezoning is approved, but if the applicant intends to expand in
the future, a Conditional Use Permit will be required at that time.

 Planning staff posted an informational sign on the subject property and mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners
of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has not received any comments.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on June 5, 2013 and voted unanimously (5-0) to recommend approval of this
Zoning Map Amendment.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses and a zoning district classification of C-2 for the
subject property. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
reading of the proposed Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Ordinance and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: June 5, 2013 Agenda Item: 8 File Number: ZMA-2013-08

Applicant: Pastor Clifton White Owner: Good News Center Location: 2293 Prairie Avenue

Current Zoning: C-1, Office District
Proposed Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Church Parcel Size: 0.78 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Pastor Clifton White of Good News Christian Center has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from C-1, Office District to C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 2293
Prairie Avenue.

The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject property and the zoning of the surrounding area. The
adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

 North: C-1, Office District; Bank
 South: C-1, Office District; Day Care Center
 East: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings
 West: PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District; School

The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning Map
Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 The applicant intends to convert an existing message board sign into an Electronically Variable Message (EVM) Sign.

EVM signs are prohibited in the C-1 district, but permitted by-right in the C-2 district.
 If the requested rezoning is approved, the applicant intends to obtain a Sign Permit to allow this sign conversion.
 The subject property is currently used as a church. Churches are a conditional use in the C-2 district. The existing

church use will be allowed to continue if the requested rezoning is approved, but if the applicant intends to expand in
the future, a Conditional Use Permit will be required at that time.

 Planning staff posted an informational sign on the subject property and mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners
of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has not received any comments.

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The applicant does not intend to change the use of the subject property. However, if the current

or future property owner decides to change the use of the property, the uses permitted by-right in
the C-2 district are compatible with the adjacent residential and institutional uses. Potentially
conflicting uses (e.g. taverns, auto service, drive-through fast-food) would receive further scrutiny
as a conditional use during the Conditional Use Permit review process.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 As shown on the attached map, there are a variety of zoning classifications within the general

area of the subject property. The proposed C-2 classification maintains an effective transition
between the C-3 and PLI (intermediate school) districts to the west & southwest and the single-
family residential district to the east of the subject property.

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; and
 The subject property is suitable for the uses permitted in the C-1 and C-2 districts.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 This is the first rezoning request on the east side of the 2200 block of Prairie Avenue since the

Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 2008, which recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses
and a C-2 zoning district along this entire block.



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses and a zoning district classification of C-2 for the
subject property. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from C-1, Office District to C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 2293 Prairie Avenue.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photo, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report



4.c. ZMA-2013-08, 2293 Prairie Avenue, Council Report



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
Monday, June 3, 2013

Presiding: Charles M. Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Chuck Kincaid, Kevin D. Leavy, David F. Luebke, Mark Spreitzer, and

James E. Van De Bogart
Absent: None

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS – none

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented a resolution authorizing a
Conditional Use Permit to allow the expansion of an existing gas station with underground fuel
tanks in a Wellhead Protection Overlay District for the properties located at 903, 911, and 915
Broad Street. It was noted that the Plan Commission recommended approval 4-0. Ms.
Christensen said that the applicant is proposing to construct a new convenience store on the
properties, including a new canopy over realigned gas pumps and a new underground tank
system. She noted that the Wellhead Technical Committee unanimously recommended approval
of this project. President Haynes opened the public hearing.

 Joe Stadelman, 2431 East Ridge Road, Angus Young and Associates, said that he is
here representing Mr. Patel, the applicant, and available to answer any questions.

President Haynes closed the public hearing. Councilor Luebke made a motion to adopt the
resolution, and Councilor Leavy seconded. Councilor De Forest asked Water Resources Director
Harry Mathos about the new tank system, and Mr. Mathos said that he has had good experiences
with fiberglass tanks. Mr. Van De Bogart asked about the alarm and monitoring system for the
tanks, and Mr. Stadelman stated that Mr. Patel has taken the training class and that the tanks are
continually monitored by the installing company. Councilor Kincaid asked who will be reviewing
the site plans for this property, and Ms. Christensen stated that the only action the Council may
take is regarding the Conditional Use Permit for the expansion of this use in the Wellhead
Protection District. She indicated that professional planning and engineering staff will be
performing the other reviews as outlined in the City’s Ordinances. Councilor Kincaid asked about
the Phase 2 Environmental Assessment, and Mr. Stadelman said that it is complete but has not
been submitted to staff yet. Councilor De Forest asked who would maintain the contingency plan,
and Mr. Mathos stated that he will require and maintain an expanded Spill Control Protection Plan
that will include a response plan. Councilors Luebke and Spreitzer expressed their support for the
project. The motion carried 7-0. File 8591

b. Ms. Christensen presented a resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a church
in a R1-B, Single-family Residential District, for the property located at 1227 Liberty Avenue. It
was noted that the Plan Commission recommended approval 4-0. Ms. Christensen said that an
individual has purchased the property with intent to establish a new church at this location and
the pastor will reside on the premises. She indicated that this project will require site and parking
improvements. Councilor Haynes opened and closed the public hearing without participation.
Councilor Spreitzer made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest seconded.
The motion carried 7-0. File 8394

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION – none



6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilor Van De Bogart made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda, which consists of items 6.a.
through 6.l. Councilor Leavy seconded, and the motion carried that the Consent Agenda be accepted,
approved, adopted, or referred and acted upon as required by state and local codes by a vote of 7-0.

a. The Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 20, 2013, were approved.
b. The resolution approving the City of Beloit’s Offer to Purchase 150 Depot Street and authorizing

the execution of the same was referred to the Plan Commission. File 8596
c. The application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow office space in the CBD-1, Central

Business District – Core, for First National Bank, located at 405 and 413 E. Grand Avenue and
413 and 417 State Street, was referred to the Plan Commission. File 8597

d. The application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a wireless communication tower in a C-
2/MRO, Neighborhood Commercial/Milwaukee Road Overlay District, for the property located at
2600 Cranston Road, was referred to the Plan Commission. File 7948

e. The application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification of the
property located at 2293 Prairie Avenue, from C-1, Office District, to C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District, was referred to the Plan Commission. File 8598

f. The application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a conversion from one legal
nonconforming use (passenger vehicle storage) to another nonconforming use (motor vehicle
wholesale sales) in an R-1B, Single-family Residential District, for the property located at 920
Keeler Avenue, was referred to the Plan Commission. File 6749

g. The application for the renewal of a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for the
Fraternal Order of Eagles #557, d/b/a/ Beloit Eagles Club, located at 302 State Street, Ronald
Minnick, new Agent, was referred to the ABLCC. File 8590

h. The resolution approving the renewal of an Annual Mobile Home Park License for the property
located at 2601 Colley Road was adopted. File 7965

i. The resolution approving the Renewal of Alcohol Beverage Licenses for the License Period
July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, was adopted. File 8590

j. The resolution approving a new Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Merrill and
Houston’s Steak Joint, LLC, located at 500 Pleasant Street, Jayme Braasch, new Agent, was
adopted. File 8590

k. The resolution approving a Change of Agent for the Cheese People of Beloit, LLC, located at
431 East Grand Avenue, from Lloyd Smith, to Jill DeLisle Smith, was adopted. File 8590

l. The resolution approving a Change of Agent for La Casa Grande, Inc., located at 618 Fourth
Street, from Ron Ross to Andrew Boros-Kazai, was adopted. File 8590

7. ORDINANCES – None

8. APPOINTMENTS – None

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
 Councilor Van De Bogart said that he participated in the Memorial Day Parade honoring Veterans

and attended a presentation of Zombie Prom at Beloit Memorial High School to raise money for a
student trip to Scotland.

 Councilor Kincaid said that he attended the Memorial Day Parade for the first time and attended
the Meals on Wheels open house.

 Councilor Luebke said that he attended the Todd School construction project groundbreaking and
received a thank-you note from the students.

 Councilor Leavy thanked Chief Jacobs, the Beloit Police Department, and the Council for their
work in achieving 100 percent compliance during the recent Class A Liquor License compliance
checks.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

a. Parks and Leisure Services Director Brian Ramsey and Recreation Supervisory Spencer Waite
presented the Parks and Recreation Division’s Summer Activities. Mr. Ramsey provided
information to the Council and the public regarding the existing parks. Mr. Waite presented
information about the summer programs and activities at the various parks and facilities for
children, adults, families, and seniors. Councilor Luebke encouraged the public to attend the



Dancing at Harry’s Place event that night and thanked Mr. Waite for revitalizing the Beloit
Triathlon.

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Public Works Director Greg Boysen presented a resolution amending the 2013 Operating
Budget for Focus on Energy Grant and authorizing the Transfer of Funds from the General Fund
Contingency Reserve Account. Mr. Boysen said that the City has received a grant from Focus on
Energy for a portion of the cost of the biomass heating project and that this resolution provides
the other $29,800 to cover the balance of the project. He said that the return on investment may
be less than two years and the furnaces have a 20-year life expectancy. Councilor Spreitzer
asked if we are comfortable spending this money from the contingency account, and Mr. Boysen
responded that the funds have been evaluated by Finance, Public Works, and the City Manager’s
office. Councilor Van De Bogart asked if burning wood releases more carbon into the air, and Mr.
Boysen said that wood waste will decompose into its elements and is more environmentally
friendly. Councilor De Forest made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Spreitzer
seconded. The motion carried 7-0. File 8570/5303

b. City Manager Larry Arft presented a resolution adopting the 2014 City of Beloit Strategic Plan.
Mr. Arft discussed the process by which the document was created and reviewed by the City
Council in a day-long workshop. Councilor Haynes said that the Councilors did a lot of work and
that the plan is great. He also said that the City should start thinking about bringing something
new to the table during the next strategic planning process. Councilor Van De Bogart said that the
plan is not a spending plan and that the items in the plan will not necessarily be funded in 2014.
Councilor Luebke made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Van De Bogart
seconded. The motion carried 7-0. File 8595

c. Water Resources Director Harry Mathos presented a resolution approving the Compliance
Maintenance Annual Report for 2012. He said that the final score for the Wastewater Treatment
facility was 3.71 out of 4 possible points. He said that the cause of both deficiencies could be
explained and that he is confident that the 2013 score will be a 4. Councilor De Forest asked
about future planning for phosphorous removal, and Mr. Mathos said that staff is working with a
consultant to develop a compliance schedule to meet the future lower phosphorous limits.
Councilor Luebke made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest seconded. The
motion carried 7-0. File 5303

12. At 8:16 p.m., Councilor Leavy made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Councilor Spreitzer
seconded. The motion carried 7-0.

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk
www.ci.beloit.wi.us
Date approved by Council:

http://www.ci.beloit.wi.us/


6.b RPB-2013-09, Parks, Open Space & Recreation Plan, Refer to Plan

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Review and consideration of the Parks, Open Space & Recreation Plan, 2012 - 2016

Date: June 17, 2013

Presenter(s): Brian Ramsey Department: Public Works - Parks & Leisure Services

Overview/Background Information:
The City of Beloit has adopted a variety of Parks and Open Space Plans over the years, the most recent document for the
time period of 2006-2010. The new plan, the 2012 – 2016 Parks, Open Space & Recreation Plan, also includes a focus
on recreation or leisure services. This plan also includes marketing and administrative recommendations.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The plan includes an analysis of community demographics, includes population characteristics and the history of

the Parks and Leisure Services Division.
 This plan also identifies Community Needs and includes Administrative, Park & Facility, and Recreation Program

goals.
 An inventory of all of the City Parks is included in the plan along with recommendations for improvements to the

parks.
 A link to the plan is available on the City’s homepage.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #1 and #4.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the June 19, 2013 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for possible action on July 1, 2013

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: A link to the plan can be found on the City’s homepage.



RESOLUTION APPROVING CLASS “B” BEER AND
“CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE

WHEREAS, an application has been received for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B”
Liquor License for Fraternal Order of Eagles #557, d/b/a Beloit Eagles Club, located at
302 State Street; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommends
approval of this Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Class “B” Beer and “Class B”
Liquor License for Fraternal Order of Eagles #557, d/b/a Beloit Eagles Club, located at
302 State Street, Ronald Minnick, Agent, is hereby approved.

Dated this 17th day of June 2013.

_______________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE CONTROL COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATION

TO: Beloit City Council

FROM: Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee

DATE: June 11, 2013

SUBJECT: Renewal Alcohol License for Eagles Club, 302 State St.

The Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommends the Beloit City
Council approve the application of Fraternal Order of Eagles #557, d/b/a Eagles
Club, for renewal of Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor and Change of Agent to
Ronald Minnick.

Motion carried 4-0

Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City Clerk









RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE OF AGENT
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE

WHEREAS, the agent of record for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut,
located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, is Ryan Bennett; and

WHEREAS, Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, has requested and the
Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee has recommended that the agent be
changed to Juan Mendoza Ochoa.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the new agent for Rockford Pizza,
LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, is Juan Mendoza Ochoa

Dated this 17th day of June 2013.

_______________________________
Charles M. Haynes, President
Beloit City Council

Attest:

__________________________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE CONTROL COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATION

TO: Beloit City Council

FROM: Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee

DATE: June 11, 2013

SUBJECT: Pizza Hut, 2787 Prairie Avenue

The Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommends the Beloit City
Council approve the Change of Agent at Rockford Pizza, LLC d/b/a Pizza Hut, to
Juan Mendoza-Ochoa for license period beginning July 1, 2013.

Motion carried 4-0

Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City Clerk







RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE OF AGENT
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE

WHEREAS, the Agent of record for Domenico’s Pizza & Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a
Domenico’s, located at 547 East Grand Avenue, is Cindy Ross; and

WHEREAS, Domenico’s Pizza & Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a Domenico’s has
requested and the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee has recommended
that the agent be changed to Nathan D. Lipps.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the new agent for Domenico’s Pizza
& Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a Domenico’s, located at 547 East Grand Avenue, is Nathan D.
Lipps

Dated this 17th day of June 2013.

_______________________________
Charles M. Haynes, President
Beloit City Council

Attest:

__________________________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE CONTROL COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATION

TO: Beloit City Council

FROM: Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee

DATE: June 11, 2013

SUBJECT: Domenico’s Pizza & Restaurant, Inc., 547 East Grand Ave.

The Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommends the Beloit City
Council approve the Change of Agent at Domenico’s to Nathan D. Lipps for
license period beginning July 1, 2013.

Motion carried 4-0

Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City Clerk







RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPLY FOR THE

NATIONAL CLEAN DIESEL GRANT
THROUGH THE LEONARDO ACADEMY THAT PROVIDES FOR THE

REDUCTION OF DIESEL EMISSION AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

WHEREAS, the Beloit City Council supports the development of cost saving innovation
applications in renewable energy technology within the City of Beloit; and

WHEREAS, the Leonardo Academy is accepting grant applications that address the
reduction of diesel emission and fuel consumption within city governments to be of mutual
benefit; and

WHEREAS, the city has four plow trucks due for replacement; and

WHEREAS, the maximum grant amount is $157,373.00 to offset the total replacement
cost; and

WHEREAS, to maximize the emission reduction benefits of this opportunity, vehicles
that perform a majority of their service within a two (2) mile radius of an interstate exit are
strongly recommended to apply.

IT IS, THEREFORE, RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin, does hereby authorized the City Manager, or his designee, to apply for
grants from the National Clean Diesel Funding Assistance through the Leonardo Academy that
reduce diesel emission and fuel consumption.

Adopted this 17th day of June 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Permission to apply for the National Clean Diesel Funding Assistance through the Leonardo Academy

Date: June 17, 2013

Presenter(s): Greg Boysen Department(s):Public Works/Operations

Overview/Background Information:

The Leonardo Academy and the Wisconsin State Energy Office requested that the City of Beloit apply for the 2013 National
Clean Diesel Funding Assistance Program. The city currently has four 2001 single axel plow trucks due for replacement that
are eligible for this funding. The program supports the mission of the city’s fleet program to accelerate the reduction of diesel
emissions and improve fuel consumption.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The National Clean Diesel Funding Assistance Program eligible project types include replacement of 1996-2003
medium and heavy duty trucks.

2. The city has four 2001 plow trucks due for replacement.
3. The funding assistance program will cover up to 25% for vehicle replacement.
4. Priority funding is given to communities within two (2) miles of an interstate for maximum benefits.
5. The amount of the grant could be as much as $157,373.00.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. As an eco-friendly municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure;
to protect both our built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.

 The opportunity to apply for the National Clean Diesel Funding Assistance Program allows fleet to focus on
sustainable stewardship during the vehicle replacement process.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels
This assistance program will reduce our diesel emission and fuel consumption.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature
This type of project has positive effect on our environment because it reduces our carbon footprint.

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems
The program will reduce the use of fossil fuels and diesel emission

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently.
Reducing diesel emissions and fuel consumption promotes the sustainable use of natural resources.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Council vote in favor of authorizing the City Manager to proceed with the grant application to the
Leonardo Academy for the National Clean Diesel Assistance Program.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

The city currently has four plow trucks due for replacement. Funding will reduce the overall cost.



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF BELOIT TO APPLY FOR AND ENTER
INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT FOR THE EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL LOCAL

JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM FY 2013 AND PARTNER WITH
ROCK COUNTY THROUGH A REGIONAL MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit is eligible for a local JAG grant to support local law
enforcement programs against violent and persistent offenders; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit intends to use these funds to purchase equipment
that will assist officers during crime investigations in the community; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit intends to use these funds to fund overtime
expenses related to gun related crimes in the community; and

WHEREAS, the Beloit Police Department is required by the grantees to form a
partnership with local jurisdictions not receiving funds; and

WHEREAS, the Rock County Sheriff’s Department will administer the grant as
part of the agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit
authorizes the Beloit Police Department to pursue an Edward Byrne Memorial Local
Justice Assistance Grant FY 2013, providing temporary funding to support the overtime
needs related to gun related crime investigations and the purchase of equipment to
assist officers during crime investigations.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit is
hereby authorized to execute the attached grant agreement and is further authorized to
execute such grant agreements in the future, provided they remain substantially
unchanged, except for technical modifications and clarifications.

Adopted this 17th day of June, 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President

Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk
tdh/res/JAG Grant 2013=res=130607 1648 (cln) (13-1143)



130611 0927(cln)(13-1143)

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution authorizing the police to apply for an Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance (JAG FY 2013) grant
and the City Manager to enter into a memorandum of understanding with Rock County to administer the grant.

Date: June 17, 2013

Presenter(s): William Tyler Department(s): Police

Overview/Background Information:

Rock County law enforcement was recently notified of our eligibility for a non-competitive grant totaling $38,310.00. The
grant itself is for law enforcement programs related to enhancing law enforcement programs. The grant requires a normal
memorandum of understanding between cooperating jurisdictions. Rock County did not receive grant money this year, but is
willing to administer the grant for a share, as they have done so in past years. JAG legislation requires counties to remain a
partner with local jurisdictions receiving funds and must be a signatory on a required memorandum of understanding. Beloit
police and Janesville police are willing to share 15% of the grant for the year 2013 and 20% of the grant for the years 2014 &
2015 with the Rock County Sheriff’s Department for its said administration. Beloit’s share will be $16,000 over the three-year
grant period.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The grant is annual and non-competitive based on a local jurisdiction’s crime reporting.

2. The grant requires cooperation between the local municipality and county.

3. The grant will provide funding for overtime for gun related crime investigations and equipment to assist officers while

conducting crime investigations.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

This grant conforms to the following goals:

1. Proactively partner with individuals and businesses to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize personal
injury, prevent loss of life, and protect property and natural resources.

2. Communicate and partner with other jurisdictions and organizations to coordinate effective and efficient service
delivery and stimulate regional prosperity.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Consent agenda. Approval of a resolution authorizing the Beloit Police Department to apply for a JAG FY 2013 grant and
authorize the City Manager to enter into a MOU with Rock County.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

There will be no financial impact to the general fund. No matching funds are required.



THE STATE OF WISCONSIN
KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENT

COUNTY OF ROCK

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELOIT, 
WISCONSIN, THE CITY OF JANESVILLE, WISCONSIN

AND COUNTY OF ROCK, WISCONSIN

2013 BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM AWARD ($38,310)

This Agreement is made and entered into this ____ day of _____________, 2013, by and 
between the County of Rock, acting by and through its governing body, the Rock County Board 
of Supervisors, hereinafter referred to as COUNTY, the City of Beloit, acting by and through its 
governing body, the City Council, hereinafter referred to as BELOIT, and the City of Janesville, 
acting through its governing body, the City Council, hereinafter referred to as JANESVILLE, all 
of Rock County, State of Wisconsin.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, this Agreement is made under the authority of Section 66.0301, Wis. Stats.; 
and

WHEREAS, each governing body, in performing governmental functions or in paying for 
the performance of governmental functions hereunder, shall make that performance or those 
payments from current revenues legally available to that party; and

WHEREAS, each governing body finds that the performance of this Agreement is in the 
best interests of all parties, that the undertaking will benefit the public, and that the division of 
costs fairly compensates the performing party for the services or functions under this Agreement; 
and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY agrees to provide BELOIT $16,000 from the JAG award for 
the Crime Prevention/Equipment Procurement Program; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY agrees to provide JANESVILLE $16,500 from the JAG 
award for the Crime Prevention/Equipment Procurement Program; and

WHEREAS, BELOIT, JANESVILLE, and the COUNTY believe it to be in their best 
interests to reallocate the JAG funds.



2

NOW, THEREFORE, the COUNTY, BELOIT and JANESVILLE agree as follows:

Section 1:

COUNTY agrees to pay BELOIT a total of $16,000 of JAG funds.  Payments will be 
made quarterly upon receipt of required program data and financial data.

COUNTY agrees to pay JANESVILLE a total of $16,500 of JAG funds.

Section 2:

COUNTY agrees to use $5,810 for the Crime Prevention/Equipment Procurement 
Program and its administration until the funds are exhausted.

Section 3:

BELOIT and JANESVILLE agree to provide COUNTY with program data and financial 
data required for reporting purposes by the last business day of each quarter until their programs 
are complete.

Section 4:

Nothing in the performance of this Agreement shall impose any liability for claims 
against COUNTY other than claims for which liability may be imposed by the Wisconsin Tort 
Claims Act.

Section 5:

Nothing in the performance of this Agreement shall impose any liability for claims 
against BELOIT other than claims for which liability may be imposed by the Wisconsin Tort 
Claims Act.

Section 6:

Nothing in the performance of this Agreement shall impose any liability for claims 
against JANESVILLE other than claims for which liability may be imposed by the Wisconsin 
Tort Act.

Section 7:

All parties to this Agreement will be responsible for its own actions in providing services 
under this Agreement and shall not be liable for any civil liability that may arise from the 
furnishing of the services by the other parties.



3

Section 8:

The parties to this Agreement do not intend for any other party to obtain a right by virtue 
of this Agreement.

Section 9:

By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intend to create any obligations 
express or implied other than those set out herein; further, this Agreement shall not create any 
rights in any party not a signatory hereto.

CITY OF BELOIT, WISCONSIN CITY OF JANESVILLE, WISCONSIN

_______________________________ ________________________________
City Manager City Manager

ATTEST: ATTEST:

_______________________________ ________________________________
City Clerk City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_______________________________ ________________________________
City Attorney City Attorney

COUNTY OF ROCK, WISCONSIN

_______________________________
J. Russell Podzilni, County Board Chair

ATTEST:

_______________________________
County Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_______________________________
Corporation Counsel

130611 0841 (cln)(13-1143)





130509 0935 (13-1100)

RESOLUTION APPROVING
THE CITY’S OFFER TO PURCHASE 150 DEPOT STREET

AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SAME

WHEREAS, the City has acquired most of the land on the south side of Shirland Avenue
between the river and the Subway restaurant; and

WHEREAS, those acquisitions included the prior Country Store West store/gas station,
the railroad right of way and the Granary building; and

WHEREAS, structures remaining on the properties have been removed and the City
needs to cap the site, particularly the gas station site; and

WHEREAS, 150 Depot Street is a vacant lot directly behind the prior Country Store
West store/gas station site; and

WHEREAS, the owner of 150 Depot Street has indicated an interest in selling the vacant
lot to the City for $1,000; and

WHEREAS, acquisition of 150 Depot Street will tend to resolve drainage issues that
could occur from capping the site.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin, hereby approves the City’s attached Vacant Land Offer to Purchase
150 Depot Street from Grafft Investments, which said offer provides for a purchase price of
$1,000 and for the City to pay all normal closing costs.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and he
is hereby, authorized to execute the Vacant Land Offer to Purchase on behalf of the City of
Beloit, as buyer, and to execute any other documents necessary to carry out the terms and
conditions of the offer.

Adopted this 17th day of June, 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President
Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



130509 0935 (13-1100)

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving the City’s Offer to Purchase 150 Depot Street and authorizing execution of same.

Date: June 17, 2013

Presenter(s): Thomas R. Casper Department(s): City Attorney

Overview/Background Information:

In recent years, the City has acquired most of the land on the south side of Shirland Avenue between the Rock River and
the Subway restaurant. Those City acquisitions included the prior Country Store West store/gas station, the railroad right
of way and the Granary building. Structures remaining on the properties have been removed and the City needs to cap
the site, particularly the gas station site. 150 Depot Street is shown on the attached map and is a small lot directly behind
the prior Country Store West store/gas station site. The owner of 150 Depot Street has indicated an interest in seller this
vacant lot to the City for $1,000. Acquisition of this lot will tend to resolve drainage issues that could occur from the
capping if the City was not able to include 150 Depot Street in the project.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. 150 Depot Street is a 2,510 square foot lot zoned CBD-2, Central Business District – Fringe. It is located directly
behind the vacant lot where the Country Store West was located before it was demolished.

2. The City will obtain outright ownership of 150 Depot Street. Future plans for this site are to restore it to green space
along with the 202 Shirland Avenue, the former location of the Country Store West. Ultimately, this could become
part of the park complex for that area of Beloit and South Beloit generally referred to as “the Confluence.”

3. The current assessment for 150 Depot Street is $1,000. The City is proposing to pay $1,000 plus normal closing
costs.

4. The Plan Commission met on June 5, 2013 and voted 5-0 to recommend approval of the purchase of 150 Depot
Street.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #1.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

City Council consideration of the resolution authorizing the purchase of 150 Depot Street. Plan Commission and City staff
recommend approval.

The City will expend approximately $1,200 for the acquisition.



tdh\res\150 Depot Street=res=130509 (13-1100)

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: June 5, 2013 Agenda Item: 9 File Number: RPB-2013-08

Applicant: City of Beloit Owner: James Grafft
Grafft Investments

Location: 150 Depot Street

Request Overview/Background Information:

In recent years the City has acquired most of the land on the south side of Shirland Avenue between the river and the
Subway restaurant. Those City acquisitions included the prior Country Store West store/gas station, the railroad right of
way and the Granary building. Structures remaining on the properties have been removed and the City needs to cap the
site, particularly the gas station site. 150 Depot Street is shown on the attached map and is a small lot directly behind the
prior Country Store West store/gas station site. The owner of 150 Depot Street has indicated an interest in selling this
vacant lot to the City for $1,000. Acquisition of this lot will tend to resolve drainage issues that could occur from the
capping if the City was not able to include 150 Depot Street in the project.

Key Issues:
1. 150 Depot Street is a 2,510 square foot lot zoned CBD-2, Central Business District – Fringe. It is located directly

behind the vacant lot where the Country Store West was located before it was demolished.

2. The City will obtain outright ownership of 150 Depot Street. Future plans for this site are to restore it to green
space along with the 202 Shirland Avenue, the former location of the Country Store West. Ultimately, this could
become part of the park complex for that area of Beloit and South Beloit generally referred to as “the Confluence.”

3. The current assessment for 150 Depot Street is $1,000. The City is proposing to pay $1,000 plus normal closing
costs.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Downtown uses for the subject property, and the CBD-2 zoning district
classification is consistent with this recommendation.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:

The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the purchase of 150 Depot Street.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map and Offer to Purchase



Planning & Building Services Division

Location & Zoning Map

Map prepared by: Julie Christensen
Date: May 2013
For:City of Beloit Planning & Building Services
Date of Aerial Photography: April 2011

Water Resources Pump House

Beloit TransitTransfer Center

vacant landformer gas station
vacant landformer granary building

city of beloitparking lot

riverbend

subway

SHIRLAND AV

WA
TE

R 
ST

CBD-2

PLI

217
225

138

231

211

200
232202 260220

150 280

100

55

µ 0 50 100 15025
Feet

RPB-2013-08150 Depot Street

Legend
 Parcels
Zoning District















RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING REGARDING SELLER’S

BROKERAGE COMMISION

WHEREAS, The City of Beloit, Greater Beloit Economic Development Corporation (GBEDC), and
the Community Development Authority (CDA) jointly own a majority of the land in the Gateway Business
Park with additional land being owned exclusively by the City of Beloit in the Gateway and Willowbrook
Business Parks; and

WHEREAS, the Gateway Business Park is a Mixed-Use park with land zoned and/or planned for
Multi-Family, Industrial, and Commercial development and the land in the Willowbrook Business Park is
zoned for Industrial Development; and

WHEREAS, the partners involved in the Gateway Business Park are desirous to sell this publicly
owned land to promote capital investment, home development and job creation; and

WHEREAS, the partners have not entered into a brokerage contract to market and sell the land;
and

WHEREAS, the partners understand the need to provide compensation to brokers who assist in
land transactions that go to closing; and

WHEREAS, due to possible land write downs for incentives actual final sale amounts at closing
may be substantially less than the original asking price; therefore the Memorandum of Understanding will
set the sales commission for brokers who successfully close deals at 6 percent of the published asking
price; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee of the Greater Beloit Economic Development Corporation
has approved a Resolution supporting the proposed Statement of Policy and Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU).

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Beloit adopts the
Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Sellers Brokerage Commissions.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and he is hereby,
authorized to execute any documents necessary to meet the terms and conditions set forth in the
Memorandum of Understanding attached hereto.

Adopted at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 17th day of June 2013.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

___________________________
Charles Haynes, Council President

Attest:

_______________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Form Revised 07-01-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution adopting the Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Sellers Brokerage Commission.

Date: June 17, 2013

Presenter(s): Andrew Janke Department(s): Economic Development

Overview/Background Information: The City of Beloit, the Beloit Community Development Authority (CDA), and the
Greater Beloit Economic Development Corporation (GBEDC) jointly own a majority of the land in the Gateway Business Park
with additional land being owned exclusively by the City of Beloit in the Gateway and Willowbrook Business Parks. Prior to
the end of 2012 these entities were also in partnership with MLG who held exclusive brokerage rights on the land owned by
the partners. Since the termination of partners relationship with MLG the GBEDC and the City have marketed the property
on the partners behalf.

Recognizing that in the future there exists a possibility that a licensed broker may become involved in a land transaction; and
further, to encourage broker participation, the partners recognize that an appropriate incentive needs to be offered to brokers.
Therefore, the attached Statement of Policy and Memorandum of Understanding sets forth the conditions under which the
City would provide a commission to a broker involved in a land transaction of any of the publicly owned lands outlined in the
document.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. For a broker to be eligible to receive a commission they must be appropriately licensed and sign the MOU prior to a
closing.

2. When a broker assisted transaction closes, the broker will receive a commission of 6% of the lands asking price. If
the actual sales price is reduced to create a development incentive the commission will remain at 6% of the lands
asking price. These prices vary by location and zoning classification and are outlined in Exhibit C.

3. The MOU will be in effect from the time a broker signs it until July 31, 2018. Either party can terminate a MOU upon
30 days advanced notice, however, the City may not terminate the agreement if there is any “pending transaction.”

4. The City Milton has approved a similar agreement and the City of Janesville will also be considering a similar
agreement at its June 24

th
meeting. Later this summer Rock County 5.0 will conduct a joint marketing event to

promote available publicly owned lands in Rock County and encourage commercial brokers to execute the MOU for
Beloit, Janesville, and Milton.

5. On June 6, 2013 the GBEDC Executive Committee approved a Resolution endorsing the proposed Policy and MOU.
(See attached)

______________________________________________________________________________________________
Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):
Approval of this resolution would focus and support sustainable stewardship of City resources.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems Development occurring in these

planned development will not negatively impact any wetlands or wildlife.
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently. Sale and development of land has

the potential to create jobs and wealth in the community.

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
Proceeds from any sales in the Gateway Business Park would be allocated to TID # 10 and any proceeds from sales in the
Willowbrook Business Park would be allocated to TID # 8.



















tdh\resolution\school crossing guard=res=130530 1119 (13-1138)

RESOLUTION
APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

WITH THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT
FOR PROVISION OF ADULT SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, hereby resolves that the

attached “Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Adult School Crossing Guards” be, and it is

hereby, approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and he

is hereby, authorized to execute the agreement on behalf of the City of Beloit.

Adopted this 17th day of June 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President

Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



130607 1444 (cln) (13-1138)

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving an intergovernmental agreement with the School District of Beloit for provision of adult school
crossing guards.

Date: June 17, 2013

Presenter(s): William Tyler Department(s): Police

Overview/Background Information:

The two year agreement for crossing guards has expired and this action will renew our agreement until 2015. This
agreement is a continuation of the collaborative efforts of the City and School District keeping the community’s children safe
walking near schools. The agreement remains consistent with the previous contract.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The local municipal government is responsible for providing for the safe movement of students near the schools.

2. The School District of Beloit has agreed to manage the crossing guards.

3. The new agreement does not increase our financial commitment more than what we have been providing the last two
years.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Proactively partner with individuals and businesses to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize personal
injury, prevent loss of life, and protect property and natural resources.

2. Communicate and partner with other jurisdictions and organizations to coordinate effective and efficient service
delivery and stimulate regional prosperity.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Approval of the resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute the agreement on behalf of the City of Beloit.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

The agreement caps the total expense for the next two years to a maximum of $47,000 annually. This is a similar amount
the City was billed for the 2011-2013 school years.



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
REGARDING ADULT SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS

WHEREAS, the School District of Beloit currently appoints adult school crossing

guards; and

WHEREAS, section 120.13(31), Wis. Stats., authorizes the School Board of the School

District of Beloit to adopt a resolution, subject to approval of the Beloit City Council, to provide

for the appointment of adult school crossing guards; and

WHEREAS, the School Board of the School District of Beloit has adopted a resolution

providing for appointment of adult school crossing guards by the School District of Beloit and

the Beloit City Council has approved that resolution; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit and the School District of Beloit agree that it is in the

best financial interest of the citizens of Beloit that the School District appoint the adult school

crossing guards for the protection of persons crossing streets and highways in the vicinity of the

schools; and

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed that the School District will appoint adult school

crossing guards on the following terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Beloit, a Wisconsin municipal corporation,

(hereinafter “City”) and the School District of Beloit (hereinafter “School District”) hereby enter

into this Intergovernmental Agreement pursuant to section 66.0301, Wis. Stats.

1. Appointment of Employment of Crossing Guards. The School District agrees,

pursuant to section 120.13(31), Wis. Stats., to appoint and to employ sufficient adult crossing

guards to serve the needs of persons crossing streets and highways in the vicinity of the schools



2

in the School District. The School District shall be responsible for supervision of the adult

school crossing guards.

2. Training and Placement of Crossing Guards. The School District agrees to

provide training to all crossing guard persons so that they will have a thorough knowledge of

their assignment and safety related job skills. The School District shall also determine the

placement and assign the crossing guard to their respective locations. The City, through its

police department, agrees to provide such traffic statistics as the School District requests.

3. Uniforms and Equipment. The City agrees to provide all school crossing guard

personnel with necessary uniforms and equipment required for performance of their duties.

4. Payment from the City to the School District. The City agrees to reimburse the

School District for the local share of the cost of providing adult school crossing services. The

City shall be required to reimburse the School District only for those services performed by the

School District employees in their role as adult school crossing guards.

Estimated Cost FY 2013-2014 FY 2014-2015

Fall $22,500 $22,500

Spring $22,500 $22,500

In no case shall the City’s reimbursement during either of the fiscal years set out above exceed

the amount of $47,000 annually.



3

5. Billings. The School District shall bill the City for the actual cost of providing

crossing guard services as follows:

Date of Bill For Services/Costs Rendered From

12/31/13 07/01/13 to 12/31/13

06/30/14 01/01/14 to 06/30/14

12/31/14 07/01/14 to 12/31/14

06/30/15 01/01/15 to 06/30/15

The bill shall be itemized showing the location of each school crossing guard, the number of

hours worked at each location and the amount of wages and benefits paid to each crossing guard

for services performed.

6. Term of Contract. The term of this contract shall commence on July 1, 2013

and shall end on June 30, 2015.

7. Indemnity. Each party agrees to be responsible for their own negligent acts,

errors or omissions in the performance of this Agreement, without waiving any governmental

immunity available to the City and without waiving any defenses of the Parties and any of their

respective successors and/or assigns under Wisconsin law. The provisions of this Paragraph are

solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto and any of their respective successors and/or assigns

and are not intended to create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any other person or

entity.

Dated this _______ day of ____________________, 2013.



4

CITY OF BELOIT

By:_______________________________
Larry N. Arft, City Manager

ATTEST:

By:_______________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:_______________________________
Thomas R. Casper, City Attorney

I hereby certify that sufficient funds have been provided
to pay the liability that the City may incur hereunder.

By:_______________________________
Paul York, City Comptroller

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT

By:_______________________________
Steve McNeal, Superintendent

ATTEST:

By:_______________________________
(signature)

__________________________________
(print name)

Its ________________________________
(print title)

tdh/files/13-1138/Crossing Guard IGA=130530 1336 (cln)


	Monday, June 17, 2013
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a.	Introduction of Beloit Public Library Director Nate Deprey (Laatz)

	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a.	Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a ground-floor office use in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for First National Bank, located at 405 and 413 E. Grand Avenue and 413 and 417 State Street  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0
	b.	Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a wireless communications tower in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay District, for the property located at 2600 Cranston Road  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0
	c.	Proposed Ordinance amending the Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit to change the zoning district classification of the property located at 2293 Prairie Avenue from C-1, Office District, to C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0 First Reading, suspend the rules for Second Reading

	5.	CITIZENS PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a.	Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 3, 2013  (LeMire)
	b.	Parks, Open Space & Recreation Plan 2012-2016 (Ramsey)  Refer to the Plan Commission  (See www.ci.beloit.wi.us to review the Plan in its entirety)
	c.	Resolution approving the renewal of a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for the Fraternal Order of Eagles #557, d/b/a/ Beloit Eagles Club, located at 302 State Street, Ronald Minnick, new Agent (LeMire)  ABLCC recommendation for approval 4-0
	d.	Resolution approving a Change of Agent for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, from Ryan Bennett to Juan Mendoza Ochoa  (LeMire)  ABLCC recommendation for approval 4-0
	e.	Resolution approving a Change of Agent for Domenico’s Pizza & Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a Domenico’s, located at 547 East Grand Avenue, from Cindy Ross to Nathan D. Lipps (LeMire) ABLCC recommendation for approval 4-0
	f.	Resolution authorizing the City Manager to Apply for the National Clean Diesel Grant through the Leonardo Academy that Provides for the Reduction of Diesel Emission and Fuel Consumption (Boysen)
	g.	Resolution authorizing the City of Beloit to apply for and enter into a Grant Agreement for the Edward Byrne Memorial Local Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program FY 2013 and partner with Rock County through a Regional Memorandum of Understanding  (Tyler)

	7.	ORDINANCES – none
	8.	APPOINTMENTS
	9.	COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none
	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS
	a.	Resolution approving the City’s Offer to Purchase 150 Depot Street and authorizing the execution of the same  (Casper)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0
	b.	Resolution adopting the Memorandum of Understanding regarding Seller’s Brokerage Commission  (Janke)
	c.	Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the School District of Beloit for provision of Adult School Crossing Guards  (Tyler)

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

